
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

   Henry Fuertes              Linda Cowles 
       P&Z CHAIRPERSON         P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
                
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

  
Neil West      Ginger McFadden   

  

          
             

Mary Starr      Matthew Hanks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Daniel Tunstall 
 

 
 

 
 

August 20, 2012  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

August 20, 2012 
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, AUGUST 20, 
2012, AT 6:30 P.M., 2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
 

Approve the Minutes of the August 6, 2012, p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 
6:30 p.m. 

 
III. EXCUSE ABSENCE 

 
Excuse the Absence of P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles from the P&Z Regular 
Meeting, held on July 16, 2012. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 
NO. 2012-05Z 

 
A request of Daniel Frayne, applicant, on behalf of JDI Ventures, Inc., owner, 
for approval of a zone change from the Spectrum District (District S5) (SP5) 
zone to the Light Industrial (M-1) zone for 17.7063 acres on the following 
described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 17.7063 acre (771,287 square feet) tract of land 
out of the R. T. Blackburn Survey, Abstract 160, Harris County, Texas; and 
being out of and a portion of Lot 22 and Lot 30 of the Orchard Ridge Addition 
to Almeda as recorded by plat filed in Volume 64, page 7 of the Deed 
Records of Harris County, Texas; and being all of and the same as the certain 
called 7.410 acre tract of land and all of and the same as the certain called 
0.400 acre tract of land, both as conveyed to CSBWMD All Terrain Vehicles, 
Inc., in Warranty Deed dated September 18, 1989, as recorded in File 
Number M-327774 of the Clerk’s Files of Harris County, Texas; and being all 
of the same as that certain called 9.896 acre tract of land as conveyed to 
CSBWMD All Terrain Vehicles, Inc., in Warranty Deed dated September 18, 
1989, as recorded in File Number M-327773 of the Clerk’s Files of Harris 
County, Texas 
 
 
General Location:  322 Riley Road, Pearland, TX 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

August 20, 2012 
Page 2 of 4 

 

B. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 
NO. 2012-06Z 

 
A request of South Park Funeral Home, owner and applicant, for approval of 
a zone change from the Light Industrial (M-1) zone to the General 
Commercial (GC) zone for 103.6405 acres on the following described 
property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A survey of two tracts of land being a 101.1405 acre tract 
out of lots 64 & 74 of the W. Zychlinski Subdivision located in Section 2 of the 
H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-542 and out of lots 70, 75, & 79 of the W. 
Zychlinski Subdivision located in Section 3 of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, 
A-232 and a tract of land being a 2.500 acre tract out of lot 64 of the W. 
Zychlinski Subdivision located in Section 2 of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, 
A-542, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  1310 N. Main, Pearland, TX 

C. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION 
NO. 2012-07Z 

 
A request of Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, on behalf of Beltway 23, 
Ltd., owner, for approval of a zone change from the Suburban Development 
(SD) zone to the General Business (GB) zone for 20.3 acres on the following 
described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: The herein described 20.3 acres, more or less, being 
generally located in Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey Abstract 564, Brazoria 
County, Texas; the south line being along the south line of Lot 2, Section 80, 
J. S. Talmage Survey, Abstract 564 according to the plat thereof as filed in 
Volume 2, Page 98 Brazoria County Plat Records; the west line being the 
east line of City of Pearland Ordinance No. 1035; the north line being the 
south right-of-way line of County Road 92 and the extension of City of 
Pearland Ordinance 924 and the east line being the west line of City of 
Pearland Ordinance No 924; All that certain 20.3 acres, more or less, 
annexed into the City of Pearland by Pearland Ordinance 1465 and being all 
of Lots 1 & 2, Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey, Abstract 564. 
 
 
General Location:  Southeast corner Broadway/Kingsley 
 

D. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE 
PRESERVE AT HIGHLAND GLEN SECTION 2 

 
A request by Christy Smidt, from Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Preserve 
at Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

August 20, 2012 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Legal Description: Being 36.5 acres of land located in the Derril H.M. Hunter 
Survey, Abstract 36, Harris County, Texas, more particularly being a portion 
of a called 56.233 acre tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an 
instrument of record in File No. 20110092185, Official Public Records of Said 
Harris County, Texas (H.C.O.P.R.R.P.), being a portion of a called 61.217 
acre tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument of record 
in File No. 20110092165, H.C.O.P.R.R.P., an undivided one-half (1/2) interest 
in said 56.233 acres and said 61.217 acres conveyed to Lennar Homes of 
Texas Land and Construction, Ltd by instrument of record in File No. 
20110407994, H.C.O.P.R.R.P. 

 
General Location: A half mile northeast of the intersection of Barry Rose 
and Pearland Parkway. 
 

E. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPEAL OF TREE 
DISPOSITION PLAN AT 2415 BROADWAYSTREET 
 
A request by Kent Marsh, applicant, on behalf of Tom Alexander, Jr., owner, 
to Appeal a Tree Disposition Plan, pursuant to Section 4.2.3.5 (e), for 
property located at 2415 Broadway, further described as: 
 
Legal Description: Minor Plat of Alexander Estates, A subdivision of 14.576 
acres in the W.D.C. Hall Survey, A-70, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, 
Texas 
 
General Location: 2415 Broadway, Pearland, TX 
 

F. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. P&Z Strategic Plan 
3. Upcoming Guest Speakers 
4. No P&Z Regular Meeting, September 3, 2012 – due to city Holiday 
5. Next JPH, September 17, 2012  

 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655

 

 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 

 
I, Judy Brown, Planning Office Coordinator of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public 
at City Hall on the 17th day of August 2012, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

August 20, 2012 
Page 4 of 4 

 

      Judy Brown, Office Coordinator 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of August, 2012. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



P&Z Minutes 
08/06/2012 
Page 1 of 2 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD AUGUST 6, 2012 AT 
6:30 P.M., IN THE 2ND FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m. with the 
following present: 

 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Neil West 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
P&Z Commissioner Matthew Hanks 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall 
 

Also in attendance were:  City Planner Harold Ellis, Planner II Ian Clowes, Deputy City 
Attorney Nghiem Doan, Assistant City Engineer Richard Mancilla and Office 
Coordinator Judy Brown. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve the minutes of the P&Z 
Regular Meeting of July 16, 2012, and P&Z Commissioner Neil West seconded. 
 
The vote was 7-0.  The minutes of the P&Z Regular Meeting of July 16, 2012 were 
approved. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF LOT ‘C’ OF THE SHADOW 
CREEK MARKETPLACE 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez from LJA Engineering, INC, applicant, on behalf of 
GCCLE-Shadow Creek, L.P., owner, for approval of a Replat of lot ‘C’ of Shadow Creek 
Marketplace in order to create two additional lots, on the following described property, to 
wit; 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 9.984 acres of land situated in the Dupuy and 
Roberts Survey, abstract 726 and the J. Crawley Survey, Abstract 174 City of Pearland, 
Brazoria County, Texas; Also being out of Lot C of Shadow Creek Parkway 
MarketPlace Amending Plat, Recorded in Document No. 20080901974, Brazoria 
County Texas.    



P&Z Minutes 
08/06/2012 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
General Location: 1000 feet north of the northeast corner of Shadow Creek Parkway 
and State Highway 288. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Matthew Hanks made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes read that the applicant had withdrawn the plat. 
 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan stated a vote was not necessary since the plat had 
been withdrawn. 
 
No action was taken.  The Replat of Lot ‘C’ of the Shadow Creek Marketplace was 
withdrawn. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. Commissioners Activity Report – There was no discussion among the Commission. 
2. Zoning Update -  City Planner Harold Ellis spoke of the upcoming cases and 

updated the Commission on the old cases. 
3. Texas APA Conference, Fort Worth, Texas, October  3-6, 2012 
4. Next JPH, August 20, 2012  
5. Next UDC Workshop, August 20, 2012 
6. Next P&Z Regular Meeting, August 20,2012 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular Meeting at 6:53 p.m. 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Judy Brown, Planning Office Coordinator 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 20th day of August 2012, A.D.  
   
 

 __________________________________  
                                                          Henry Fuertes, P&Z Chairperson     



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

EXCUSE 
 
ABSENCE 



certificate
Linda cowles 
to:
JBrown
08/07/2012 12:02 PM
Show Details

History: This message has been replied to.
Judy,
Just finished the OMA training; OMG, they should warn folks it's 61 minutes!!

I've prinited a copy for you and will drop if off today. Also, please enter into the P&Z minutes that my 
absence on July 16, 2012 was excused.

Thanks,

Linda Cowles

Page 1 of 1

8/17/2012file:///C:/Users/jbrown/AppData/Local/Temp/notes528018/~web5338.htm



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 
TEXAS, TO BE HELD AUGUST 20, 2012, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 
 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2012-05Z 
 
A request of Daniel Frayne, applicant, on behalf of JDI Ventures, Inc., owner, for 
approval of a zone change from the Spectrum District (District S5) (SP5) zone to 
the Light Industrial (M-1) zone for 17.7063 acres on the following described 
property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 17.7063 acre (771,287 square feet) tract of land out 
of the R. T. Blackburn Survey, Abstract 160, Harris County, Texas; and being out 
of and a portion of Lot 22 and Lot 30 of the Orchard Ridge Addition to Almeda as 
recorded by plat filed in Volume 64, page 7 of the Deed Records of Harris 
County, Texas; and being all of and the same as the certain called 7.410 acre 
tract of land and all of and the same as the certain called 0.400 acre tract of land, 
both as conveyed to CSBWMD All Terrain Vehicles, Inc., in Warranty Deed dated 
September 18, 1989, as recorded in File Number M-327774 of the Clerk’s Files 
of Harris County, Texas; and being all of the same as that certain called 9.896 
acre tract of land as conveyed to CSBWMD All Terrain Vehicles, Inc., in 
Warranty Deed dated September 18, 1989, as recorded in File Number M-
327773 of the Clerk’s Files of Harris County, Texas 
 
 
General Location:  322 Riley Road, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 
please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 1 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF AUGUST 20, 2012 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2012-05Z 
 

A request of Daniel Frayne, applicant, on behalf of JDI Ventures, Inc., owner, for 
approval of a zone change from the Spectrum District (District S5) (SP5) zone to the 
Light Industrial (M-1) zone for 17.7063 acres on the following described property, to 
wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being a 17.7063 acre (771,287 square feet) tract of land out of  
the R. T. Blackburn Survey, Abstract 160, Harris County, 
Texas; and being out of and a portion of Lot 22 and Lot 30 of 
the Orchard Ridge Addition to Almeda as recorded by plat filed 
in Volume 64, page 7 of the Deed Records of Harris County, 
Texas; and being all of and the same as the certain called 
7.410 acre tract of land and all of and the same as the certain 
called 0.400 acre tract of land, both as conveyed to CSBWMD 
All Terrain Vehicles, Inc., in Warranty Deed dated September 
18, 1989, as recorded in File Number M-327774 of the Clerk’s 
Files of Harris County, Texas; and being all of the same as that 
certain called 9.896 acre tract of land as conveyed to 
CSBWMD All Terrain Vehicles, Inc., in Warranty Deed dated 
September 18, 1989, as recorded in File Number M-327773 of 
the Clerk’s Files of Harris County, Texas  

 

General Location: 322 Riley Rd, Pearland, TX 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  August 20, 2012* 
City Council for First Reading:          September 10, 2012* 
City Council for Second Reading:    September 24, 2012* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Daniel Frayne, applicant, for JDI Ventures, Inc., owner, is requesting 
approval of a zone change from the Spectrum District (District S5) (SP5) zoning district 
 to the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning district for 17.7063 acres for the above referenced 
location.  The applicant has indicated they would like to re-use the property in 
accordance with the Light Industrial (M-1) land use regulations.  At this time, the City is 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 2 
 

not aware of a specific use or tenant, or any specific redevelopment plans. 
 
The property in question was annexed into the City of Pearland’s corporate limits in 
April 2005 as part of the Spectrum District, and Zoned District S5 (SP5) in 2006. 
 
Site photos of the property and its current condition are provided below: 
 

 
 

 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 3 
 

 
 
As illustrated, the property is currently not being used and is considered abandoned by 
the City’ Unified Development Code.  As the property is considered abandoned, reuse 
or redevelopment of the property is required to meet the City’s current land use and 
development regulations, based on the property’s current zoning. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 
 

Zoning  Land Use 

North Light Industrial (M-1)  Undeveloped 
South Spectrum District (District S5)   Undeveloped 
East Spectrum District (District S5)   Residential 
West Spectrum District (District S5)   Undeveloped 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Spectrum District (District S5) (SP5).  As the 
property is currently being requested to be rezoned to Light Industrial (M-1), a breakdown 
between those requirements and the site current configuration is provided below: 
 
   Light Industrial (M-1) Existing Site 
Lot Size:   40,000 sq ft   17.7063 acres      
Lot Width:   150’    ~915’ 
Lot Depth:   150’    ~1,010’ 
Front Setback: 35’    ~30’  
Rear Setback: 25’    ~350’  
Side Setback : 25’    ~0’,80’ 
 
As previously mentioned the property is currently vacant and considered to be abandoned. 
 The existing site does not meet the front or left setback requirements, and is considered to 
be non-conforming.  Any future expansion or re-use of the property would require the 
property meet all requirements of the Unified Development Code.  Depending on the scope 
of re-use or expansion, these requirements may include façade improvements, parking, 
landscaping, screening, and sidewalks. 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property is not currently platted.  Any future expansion of the 
property (square footage or paving) would require the property to be platted at that time. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Mixed Use Business Park/Spectrum District for the 
subject property.   The 2004 Comprehensive Plan update adopted by City Council further 
supports the previous plan and designates the general area as the Spectrum District, and 
states that the area should be classified a special zoning district which contains (but are 
not limited to) the following characteristics:  



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 4 
 

• Mix of land uses 
• A distinctive gateway announcing the City of Pearland from State    

  Highway 288 and Beltway 8 
• A comprehensive streetscape program, with medians, street trees,  

  cohesive lighting, and pedestrian walkways 
• Front building facades with a mixture of architectural and design   

  characteristics that are aesthetically pleasing 
• Buildings set in a campus like environment where appropriate, such  

  as a large office, manufacturing, or research and development centers 
 
Below is a map of the Spectrum District, as adopted in the 2004 Comprehensive Plan 
update: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 5 
 

The 2004 Future Land Use Plan separates the area into five (5) different subcategories, 
S1-S5 (as illustrated above).  As previously mentioned, the subject property is currently 
zoned S5, summarized in the Comprehensive Plan as: 
 

 
 

Therefore, based on the City’s Future Land Use Plan in the Comprehensive Plan, and 
Council’s consistent direction that new and redevelopment in the subject area should 
be in compliance with the City’s Spectrum District plan, the proposed zone change to 
Light Industrial (M-1) would not be in compliance with the current Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The City has also been working with a consultant on a development plan for the Lower 
Kirby District, which is an area that encompasses a large portion of the Spectrum 
District.  To summarize, the plan is to create a form based code to achieve a vision for 
the district, which is a unified, mixed use, high density, pedestrian friendly environment. 
 Details of the development plan were presented to Council in June of this year, and 
Council gave direction to staff to begin implementing the plan into the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  While the Lower Kirby District plan does not specifically include 
this area (its boundary stops at Hooper, rather than extending to this property along 
Riley), discussion ensued at Council where it was indicated the remainder of the 
Spectrum area, specifically the SP5 area, should remain what it is in an effort to not 
lower development standards (which would result if the property was zoned to Light 
Industrial (M-1). 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Riley Road, a secondary thoroughfare, with a minimum of 100’ right-of-way. 
 
 
 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 6 
 

AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does not have access to public water 
and sewer at this time. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  This development is 
currently negatively impacting the surrounding area.  This is an on-going code 
enforcement case regarding site debris (abandoned boat in front yard), as well as the 
site not meeting the current development requirements of the Spectrum District S5 
(SP5) zoning requirements.   If the property is re-used or redeveloped with the current 
regulations, which would also require Special Exceptions to certain developmental 
requirements (ex. Side setback) from the ZBA, it will result in a higher quality 
development than if it were re-used or redeveloped under the Light Manufacturing (M-1) 
regulations.  The Spectrum District regulations include enhanced building material 
requirements, fencing and screening materials, landscaping, parking, lighting, and 
building design and layout requirements which are not required with the Light Industrial 
(M-1) development requirements.  Therefore, if the zone change is approved, there will 
be a negative impact on existing and future development in the area.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee.  The City’s Fire Marshall’s Office and Building Official are unclear at 
this time how Life/Safety codes, most specifically, fire protection, will be able to be met at 
this site.  At this time, the City’s public water system does not extent down Riley Road to 
this site, resulting in a lack of water for fire protection. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is not able to recommend approval of the Zone 
Change 2012-05Z as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed zone change will not bring existing non-conforming property into 
compliance with the City’s current Unified Development Code. 
 

2. The proposed zone change will not bring existing non-conforming property into 
compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
  

3. The proposed zone change would result in redevelopment of abandoned property in 
a manner which would be in opposition to the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  

 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-05Z 

Page 7 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
• Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
• Property Ownership Map 
• Property Owner Notification List 
• Future Land Use Plan 
• Aerial Photograph 
• Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
• Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Vicinity and Zoning Map

Zone Change 2012-05Z

322 Riley Rd

SP5

PUD

M-1

SP4

SP1

SP3

R-1

OP

K
IR

B
Y D

RRILEY RD

S 8 FWY

H
O

O
PE

R
 R

D

FRUGE RD
D

EL PA
PA ST

S SAM HOUSTON PKWY

A
LM

ED
A SC

H
O

O
L R

D

LA
B

R
A

D
O

R
 R

D

K
IN

G
SL

EY
 D

R

¯0 500 1,000250 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



  Abutter Map 

Scale 1:7,027
1 in = 586 ft 

Zone Change 2012-05Z 



Owner Name Address City State Zip
GREADY THOMAS G 167 PLANTATION RD HOUSTON TX 77024
JOHNSON DON T & VIVIAN E 14709 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
JDI VENTURES INC 322 RILEY RD HOUSTON TX 77047
CISNEROS OVIDIO & ELVIA 14731 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
MARTINEZ JOSE G 14735 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
LOPEZ JOHNNY J 14729 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
DOCKERY LAURA C 14725 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
PULLIN FAY M 14705 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
GUZMAN EVERT & TOMASA C 14739 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
SAND LAND INC 2700 POST OAK BLVD STE 1770 HOUSTON TX 77056
HARRISON MARTIN L 324 RILEY RD HOUSTON TX 77047
JOHNSON DON T 14709 ALMEDA SCHOOL RD HOUSTON TX 77047
JDI VENTURES INC 7203 MILLER ROAD SUITE 2 HOUSTON TX 77049
DANIEL FRAYNE 17171 PARK ROW STE 160 HOUSTON TX 77084



Future Land Use Map
Zone Change 2012-05Z
322 Riley Rd

Mixed Use Business Park

Parks
High Density ResidentialMedium Density Residential

Low Density Residential

KIRBY DRRILEY RD

HO
OP

ER
 R

D

S 8 FWY

FRUGE RD
DEL PAPA ST

S SAM HOUSTON PKWY

ALMEDA SCHOOL RD

LABRADOR RD

KI
NG

SL
EY

 D
R

¯0 500 1,000250 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2012-05Z
322 Riley Rd

RILEY RD

DEL PAPA ST

ALMEDA SCHOOL RD

LABRADOR RD

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
B

 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 
TEXAS, TO BE HELD AUGUST 20, 2012, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 
 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2012-06Z 
 
A request of South Park Funeral Home, owner and applicant, for approval of a 
zone change from the Light Industrial (M-1) zone to the General Commercial 
(GC) zone for 103.6405 acres on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A survey of two tracts of land being a 101.1405 acre tract out 
of lots 64 & 74 of the W. Zychlinski Subdivision located in Section 2 of the H. T. & 
B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-542 and out of lots 70, 75, & 79 of the W. Zychlinski 
Subdivision located in Section 3 of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-232 and a 
tract of land being a 2.500 acre tract out of lot 64 of the W. Zychlinski Subdivision 
located in Section 2 of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-542, Brazoria County, 
Texas 
 
 
General Location:  1310 N. Main, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 
please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-06Z 

Page 1 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF AUGUST 20, 2012 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2012-06Z 
 

A request of South Park Funeral Home, owner and applicant, for approval of a zone 
change from the Light Industrial (M-1) zone to the General Commercial (GC) zone 
for 103.6405 acres on the following described property, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: A survey of two tracts of land being a 101.1405 acre tract out of  
lots 64 & 74 of the W. Zychlinski Subdivision located in Section 
2 of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-542 and out of lots 70, 
75, & 79 of the W. Zychlinski Subdivision located in Section 3 
of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-232 and a tract of land 
being a 2.500 acre tract out of lot 64 of the W. Zychlinski 
Subdivision located in Section 2 of the H. T. & B. R. R. Co. 
Survey, A-542, Brazoria County, TX 

 

General Location: 1310 N. Main St, Pearland, TX 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  August 20, 2012* 
City Council for First Reading:          September 10, 2012* 
City Council for Second Reading:    September 24, 2012* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  South Park Funeral Home, owner and applicant, is requesting approval of 
a zone change from the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning district, to the General Commercial 
(GC) zoning district for 101.1405 acres for the above referenced location.  The property 
is generally located at the southwest corner of Main Street and Knapp Road.  It is 
currently developed and being used as a South Park Funeral Home, classified as 
Mortuary/Cemetery (including Mausoleum/Crematorium) and Funeral Home, according 
to the City’s Land Use Matrix.  South Park also owns and operates approximately 18 
acres of land on the east side of Main Street for the same type of use. 
 
The City of Pearland’s Land Use Matrix in the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
indicates that a Mortuary/Cemetery is not permitted in the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning 
district, and a Funeral Home is only permitted in the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning district 
with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  Therefore, the applicant is 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-06Z 

Page 2 
 

requesting that the property’s zoning be changed to General Commercial (GC) which 
permits both land use designations by right, thus reflecting the property’s actual use.  
This will also allow the applicant to expand site operations in the future without 
triggering any zoning requirements, such as a zone change or Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP). 
 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 
 

Zoning  Land Use 

North Light Industrial (M-1)  Commercial  
South Light Industrial (M-1)  Commercial 
East General Commercial (GC) 

and Light Industrial (M-1) 
 Commercial, Vacant, Cemetery  

West Light Industrial (M-1) and City 
of Brookside Village 

 Vacant, Residential 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Light Industrial (M-1).  As the property is 
currently being requested to be rezoned to General Commercial (GC), a breakdown 
between those requirements and the site current configuration is provided below: 
 
   General Commercial Existing Site 
Lot Size:   22,500 sq ft   101.1405 acres      
Lot Width:   150’    2,050’ 
Lot Depth:   125’    2,750 
Front Setback: 25’    ~50’ (site operations) 
Rear Setback: 25’    ~75’ (site operations) 
Side Setback : 10’    ~15’ (site operations) 
 
As discussed, the property is currently being used as a Mortuary/Cemetery (including 
Mausoleum/Crematorium) and Funeral Home.  As a Mortuary/Cemetery is not permitted in 
the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning district, and a Funeral Home is only permitted in the Light 
Indisutrical (M-1) zoning district with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), the 
existing site is considered to be non-conforming.  Approval of the requested zone change 
will bring the entire site into compliance with the Unified Development Code’s Land Use 
regulations.  Any future expansion of the use for will be required to meet all requirements of 
the Unified Development Code.   
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property is not currently platted.   Any future expansion of the 
property (square footage or paving) will require the property to be platted at that time. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Public/Semi Public for the subject property.  The 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-06Z 

Page 3 
 

Comprehensive Plan further indicates that any zoning district could be considered a 
corresponding zone.  As the property is currently developed and used as a 
Mortuary/Cemetery (including Mausoleum/Crematorium) and Funeral Home, if the zone 
changed is approved staff has determined it would be in compliance with the current 
Comprehensive Plan.  Further, as indicated in the excerpt below from the current 
Comprehensive Plan, the City did take into account the current use for this property at the 
time of the last Comprehensive Plan update, and designated the area what was deemed to 
be the closest fit to the actual land use operation at the time: 
 

 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Main Street, a major thoroughfare, with a minimum of 120’ right-of-way; and 
Knapp Rd, a minor collector, with a minimum of 60’ right-of-way. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
sewer.   
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  As this development already 
exists with no known negative impacts, the proposed zone change and any potential 
expansion is not anticipated to have any negative impacts on existing surrounding or 
future developments.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-06Z 

Page 4 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2012-06Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed zone change will bring an existing non-conforming use into 
compliance with the City’s current Unified Development Code. 
 

2. The proposed zone chance will bring existing non-conforming property into 
compliance with the City’s Future Land Use Plan. 
 

3. The current use exists with no known negative impacts to the City or surrounding 
properties. 
 

4. Any future expansion is not anticipated to have any negative impacts to the City or 
surrounding properties. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
• Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
• Property Ownership Map 
• Property Owner Notification List 
• Future Land Use Plan 
• Aerial Photograph 
• Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
• Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
Zone Change 2012-06Z
1310 N. Main

M-1 GC

GB

R-1

R-2

NS

PUD

Brazoria

Harris

N MAIN STKNAPP RD

MCHARD RD

MYKAWA RD

OLD ALVIN RD

ALICE

ROBINSONGLENDA

NANCY
BOBBY

ROBERT
LILA

UN
IO

N 
VA

LL
EY

KATY

¯0 490 980245 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



  Abutter Map 

Scale 1:8,979
1 in = 748 ft 

Zone Change 2012-06Z 



Owner Address City State Zip
A L NILO LTD PARTNERSHIP 340 MCEACHIN LANDING RD HAZLEHURST GA 31539-5740
GARCIA UVALDO TORRES 12519 MAX RD PEARLAND TX 77581-7901
ELFREY MARTIN REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 5807 GROVESNOR ST PEARLAND TX 77581
BUYING SOURCE LLC 1074 S BATESVILLE RD GREER SC 29650
JASSO TINA FLORES 6907 ISLA ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2100
PEARMAIN ENTERPRISES LLC 1416 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2227
RESTLAND OF DALLAS C/O CHRIS THREADGILL 13005 GREENVILLE AVE DALLAS TX 75243-1916
AS ACQUISITION CORP C/O RICK JACOBSON 1323 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2224
GLOBAL NEW MILLENIUM PARTNERS LTD 6671 SOUTHWEST FWY STE 440 HOUSTON TX 77074-2220
PEARLAND PRAISE CENTER ASSEMBLY OF GOD PO BOX 2362 PEARLAND TX 77588-2362
PEARMAIN ENTERPRISES LLC 1416 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2227
A L NILO LTD PARTNERSHIP 340 MCEACHIN LANDING RD HAZLEHURST GA 31539-5740
VALDETERO GARY W 1134 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2210
VILLAREAL ROGELIO & SANDRA L 7015 ISLA ST BROOKSIDE VL TX 77581-2153
GONZALES BERTHA C 7035 ISLA ST PEARLAND TX 77581-2153
COKER A D PO BOX 481 PEARLAND TX 77588-0481
KWAK JUNG HWAN 2621 SUNFISH DR PEARLAND TX 77584-3041
ESPITIA EFRIN 7139 KATY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
TREVINO JESUS & SILVIA 3107 LONGWOOD DR PASADENA TX 77503-2125
RENE SALINAS 1310 N. MAIN PEARLAND TX 77581
ROBERT C MURRAY III 523 S MAIN ST GRAPEVINE TX 76051



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2012-06Z
1310 N. Main

Industrial

Public / Semi-Public

Offices

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Parks

High Density Residential

Brazoria

Harris

N MAIN ST

KNAPP RD

MCHARD RD

MYKAWA RD

OLD ALVIN RD

ALICE

ROBINSON

GLENDA

NANCY
BOBBY

¯0 490 980245 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2012-06Z
1310 N. Main

Brazoria

N MAIN ST

KNAPP RD

MYKAWA RD

LILA

KATY

COMAL

ISLA

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

     C 
 

 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 
TEXAS, TO BE HELD AUGUST 20, 2012, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 
 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2012-07Z 
 
A request of Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, on behalf of Beltway 23, Ltd., 
owner, for approval of a zone change from the Suburban Development (SD) 
zone to the General Business (GB) zone for 20.3 acres on the following 
described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: The herein described 20.3 acres, more or less, being 
generally located in Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey Abstract 564, Brazoria 
County, Texas; the south line being along the south line of Lot 2, Section 80, J. 
S. Talmage Survey, Abstract 564 according to the plat thereof as filed in Volume 
2, Page 98 Brazoria County Plat Records; the west line being the east line of City 
of Pearland Ordinance No. 1035; the north line being the south right-of-way line 
of County Road 92 and the extension of City of Pearland Ordinance 924 and the 
east line being the west line of City of Pearland Ordinance No 924; All that 
certain 20.3 acres, more or less, annexed into the City of Pearland by Pearland 
Ordinance 1465 and being all of Lots 1 & 2, Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey, 
Abstract 564. 
 
 
General Location:  Southeast corner Broadway/Kingsley 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 
please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-07Z 

Page 1 
 

      

 
JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING OF AUGUST 20, 2012 
 

 
Zone Change No. 2012-07Z 
 

A request of Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, on behalf of Beltway 23, Ltd., 
owner, for approval of a zone change from the Suburban Development (SD) zone to 
the General Business (GB) zone for 20.3 acres, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: The herein described 20.3 acres, more or less, being generally  
located in Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey Abstract 564, 
Brazoria County, Texas; the south line being along the south 
line of Lot 2, Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey, Abstract 564 
according to the plat thereof as filed in Volume 2, Page 98 
Brazoria County Plat Records; the west line being the east line 
of City of Pearland Ordinance No. 1035; the north line being 
the south right-of-way line of County Road 92 and the 
extension of City of Pearland Ordinance 924 and the east line 
being the west line of City of Pearland Ordinance No 924; All 
that certain 20.3 acres, more or less, annexed into the City of 
Pearland by Pearland Ordinance 1465 and being all of Lots 1 
& 2, Section 80, J. S. Talmage Survey, Abstract 564. 

 

General Location: Southeast corner Broadway/Kingsley, Pearland, TX 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  August 20, 2012* 
City Council for First Reading:          September 10, 2012* 
City Council for Second Reading:    September 24 2012* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, Beltway 23 Ltd, owner, is requesting 
approval of a zone change from Suburban Development (SD) zone, to General 
Business (GB) zone for 20.3 acres for the above referenced location.  The property in 
question was formally annexed into the City of Pearland corporate limits by City Council 
on July 23, 2012.  At that time, the Suburban Development (SD) zoning was applied to 
the property. 
   



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-07Z 

Page 2 
 

 
As a General Business (GB) zone change would not require a site plan, as later 
discussed in this report, this zone change will allow the property to be developed in 
accordance with the land use and development regulations of that zone with no further 
City zoning approvals. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 
 

Zoning  Land Use 

North Planned Unit Development  Vacant 
South Planned Unit Development  Single-Family Residential 
East Planned Unit Development  Single-Family Residential 
West Planned Unit Development  Single-Family Residential 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Suburban Development (SD).  As the property 
is currently being requested to be rezoned to General Business (GB), a breakdown 
between those requirements and the site current configuration is provided below: 
 
   General Business  Existing Site 
Lot Size:   22,500 sq ft   20.3 Acres      
Lot Width:   150’    910’ 
Lot Depth:   125’    970’ 
Front Setback: 25’    n/a 
Rear Setback: 25’    n/a 
Side Setback : 10’ if abuts res.  n/a 
 
As the site is currently undeveloped, new development will be required to meet all 
requirements of the Unified Development Code.   
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property is not currently platted.  Platting will be required at the 
time of development. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Low Density Residential and Minor Retail Node (25 
acres) for the subject property.  As the Comprehensive Plan does define a minor retail 
node to be approximately 25 acres, if this zone change is approved it would result in a 
larger commercial development at the intersection of Kingsley and Broadway than 25 
acres.  This is a result of the following factors: 

a) The Shadow Creek Ranch PUD currently allows for approximately 9 
acres of commercial development directly to the north of this property 
(Northeast corner of Broadway/Kingsley), which is also included in the 
Minor Retail Node acreage calculation 

b) The Shadow Creek Ranch PUD currently indicates a school site at the 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-07Z 

Page 3 
 

northwest corner of Broadway/Kingsley which consists of approximately 
36.5 acres.  The PD document allows for the flexibility to transition some 
of this acreage into commercial development at the intersection.  

c) The proposed zone change request at the southeast corner of 
Broadway/Kingsley is approximately 20.3 acres of General Business (GB) 

 
 

 
 
Therefore, as the Future Land Use plan indicates that only approximately 25% of the 
subject property should be zoned commercial, if the entire property is zoned General 
Business, the zone change request would not be in conformance with the approved Future 
land Use Plan/Comprehensive Plan. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Broadway and Kingsley/CR48, both major thoroughfares, with a minimum of 
120’ right-of-way. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
sewer.   
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  As a site plan is not required 
for a zone change, exact impact on existing and future development is unknown at this 
time.  If the zone change is approved as submitted, there will likely be a negative impact 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-07Z 

Page 4 
 

on existing single-family developments located to the south and east of the site.  The 
General Business (GB) zone will allow for a number of potentially incompatible uses 
with no additional zoning approval required, including but not limited to: 
 

• Automotive related uses 
o Sales 
o Full service carwash 
o Gasoline station 

• Indoor and outdoor commercial amusement 
• Financial institution with drive-thru 
• Office, Parole-Probation, Bail Bonds 
• Check Cashing 
• Extended stay hotel/motel 
• Consignment Shop 
• Convenience store (with no gasoline sales) 
• Grocery store 
• Hardware store 
• General Store 

 
Due to these types of allowable uses and potential adverse impacts, staff believes that 
additional zoning options which may offer additional buffering and/or land use controls 
which will help to ensure a development in this location which is most compatible with 
existing single-family residential areas immediately abutting the property.  Staff has 
identified the following options: 
 

1. Planned Development:  A Planned Development for this area will 
give the City assurances that only development that is most 
compatible with existing single-family residential areas are permitted 
at this site, with appropriate buffers, via the required site plan and 
land use restrictions available with a Planned Development 
document. 

2. Transition Zone Option 1:  The City’s Land Use Plan for this area 
indicates a Minor Retail Node.  As discussed earlier in this report, 
due to the acreage limitations of a Minor Retail Node, it was not 
envisioned at the time of the last Future Land Use Plan update that 
this entire parcel would be zoned General Business (GB).  Therefore, 
in order to ensure compatible land uses, one option would be to zone 
the hard corner of Broadway and Kingsley (approximately 5 acres) 
General Business (GB) and zone the remaining Office Professional 
(OP), which is the commercial zone which is most compatible with 
the nearby residential uses.   

 
A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) may be required at the time of site plan review by the 
City’s Engineering department to determine if there are any potentially negative traffic 
impacts anticipated as a result of the proposed development at that time.  If a TIA is 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-07Z 

Page 5 
 

required, and mitigation measures are deemed necessary as a result, the applicant 
would be responsible for implementing those measures. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  At the time of this report, 
staff has received three (3) calls in regards to this request.  Two (2) were informational in 
nature, and one (1) was in opposition. Additional comments, if received, will be relayed at 
the public hearing. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is not able to recommend approval of the Zone 
Change 2012-07Z as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed zone change, at the proposed acreage, would not be in compliance 
with the City’s approved Land Use Plan section of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. The proposed zone change may not be compatible with and result in adverse 
impacts with existing nearby single-family residential developments. 
 

3. A Planned Development or lesser zone such as Office Professional (OP), or 
Residential Retail Node (RRN), may offer the best protection for the City to ensure 
that future development for this parcel is compatible with surrounding existing 
single-family residential land uses. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
• Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
• Property Ownership Map 
• Property Owner Notification List 
• Future Land Use Plan 
• Aerial Photograph 
• Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
• Related Documents 

 
 
 



 
 

JPH 8-20-12 
Zone Change 2012-07Z 

Page 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
Zone Change 2012-07Z
Southeast Corner
Broadway/Kingsley

PUD

SD

RE

R-2

R-1
Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

CR 48

KI
RB

Y D
R

KI
NG

SL
EY

 D
R CLEAR LAKE LOOP

TRINITY BAY DR

ORCHARD MILL LN

PA
RK

 FA
LL

S D
R

INDIGO DR

KIRBY DR

¯0 490 980245 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



  Abutter Map 

Scale 1:4,435
1 in = 370 ft 

Zone Change 2012-07Z 



Owner Address City State Zip
GREEN MARCUS NEAL & CHANDRA M 3008 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3767
PAN YANG & CHIHCHIANG FU 3006 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3767
SOUTHERN TRAILS RESIDENTIAL ASSOC INC PO BOX 219223 HOUSTON TX 77218
BELTWAY 23 LTD 5855 SOVEREIGN DR STE B STE B TX 77036-2318
SHADOW CREEK RANCH MAINTENANCE 
ASSOCIATION 12234 SHADOW CREEK PKWY BLDG 3 STE 114 SUITE #114 TX 77584-7330
RODRIGUEZ J RAUL & LYDIA G 3115 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
LEE MICHAEL PAUL & GLENDA K 3113 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77584
WILLIAMS JARED & SHACARLA 3101 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-3685
LOLLEY ANGELA C & JOHN R 12502 PEPPER CREEK LN PEARLAND TX 77584
LE TRAM 12503 PEPPER CREEK LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3766
NGO TIMOTHY H & TRAN T LE 12501 PEPPER CREEK LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3766
NGUYEN DAT V & CYNDI M 3112 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3769
LEWIS STANLEY T & RONDA R 3111 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3770
BELLOW LESTER JR & SHEILA H 3110 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3769
GODINEZ REYNALDO D & SUSAN M 3109 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3770
NG JAYSON & MYLAN NGO & KIEM NGO 3108 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3769
LEE JENNIFER C 3107 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3770
NGO THONG 3105 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3770
ASHTON HOUSTON RESIDENTIAL LLC 11375 S SAM HOUSTON PKWY W STE 100 HOUSTON TX 77031-2349
ZHENG ZHONG & SWEE TENG CHIN 3103 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3770
CANNON DEAN 3004 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77581
PALACIOS JEROME P & JENELLIE BALINGIT 12417 CLOVER CREEK LN PEARLAND TX 77581
BURT CHRISTOPHER C 3001 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3768
CL ASHTON WOODS LP C/O DENISE ORSBORN 6300 BEE CAVE RD BLDG 2 STE 500 AUSTIN TX 78746-5149
LEONARD SCOTT P 12507 PEPPER CREEK LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3766
SCR C20B DEVELOPMENT LP 4201 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-4188
GEORGE BENETTA & FLEMING G PANJIKKARAN 3111 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-3685
NGUYEN STEVEN PHI & HOA LE TANG 3109 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-3685
PAUL PRINCY & SHAJAN U POULOSE 3107 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-3685



HARPER ERIC L & TERI L 3105 TRAIL RIDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-3685
BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST #34 3200 SOUTHWEST FWY STE 2600 HOUSTON TX 77027-7537
MCDONALD JOHN & TERRI 3101 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584-3770
GRILLO RAFAEL A 3005 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77584
SAMUEL JOBY V & PRIYANKA S KOTIAN 3102 DECKER FIELD LN PEARLAND TX 77581

KERRY GILBERT & ASSOCIATES C/O CHRISTY SMIDT 23501 CINCO RANCH BLVD STE A-250 KATY TX 77494



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2012-07Z
Southeast Corner
Broadway/Kingsley

Parks

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Minor Nodes

High Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

CR 48
KINGSLEY DR CLEAR LAKE LOOPAUTUMNBROOK LN

¯0 300 600150 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2012-07Z
Southeast Corner
Broadway/Kingsley

Brazoria
BROADWAY ST

KI
NG

SL
EY

 D
R

CLEAR LAKE LOOP

HALFMOON BAY
DE

CK
ER

 FI
EL

D

WILLOW BROOK LN

CR 48

ASH BROOK LN

TRAIL RIDGE DR

LAUREL BROOK LN

PAGE CREST LN

MOSSY TRAIL CT

ROSEMONT LN

EMERALD BROOK LN

BIRCH LANDING CT

¯0 250 500125 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
D

 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   
 

 
 
 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes, Planner II 
 
DATE:    08/17/2012 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat of the Preserve at Highland Glen, Sec. 2 

 
 

�   Old Business      X   New Business  �   Discussion Item �   Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Christy Smidt, from Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, 
on behalf of Beazer Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Preserve at 
Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision, generally 
located a half mile northeast of the intersection of Barry Rose and Pearland Parkway.  

 
 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Preliminary Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF August 20, 2012 
 

 
Preliminary Plat of The Preserve at Highland Glen Section 2 
 

A request by Christy Smidt, from Kerry Gilbert & Associates, applicant, on behalf 
of Beazer Homes, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Preserve at 
Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 36.5 acres of land located in the Derril H.M. Hunter 
Survey, Abstract 36, Harris County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of a 
called 56.233 acre tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an 
instrument of record in File No. 20110092185, Official Public Records of Said 
Harris County, Texas (H.C.O.P.R.R.P.), being a portion of a called 61.217 acre 
tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument of record in File 
No. 20110092165, H.C.O.P.R.R.P., an undivided one-half (1/2) interest in said 
56.233 acres and said 61.217 acres conveyed to Lennar Homes of Texas Land 
and Construction, Ltd by instrument of record in File No. 20110407994, 
H.C.O.P.R.R.P. 
 
General Location: A half mile northeast of the intersection of Barry Rose and   
Pearland Parkway. 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Preliminary Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 
2 a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision on approximately 36.6 acres.  This 
proposed subdivision is the second and final phase of an overall Cluster Plan for The 
Preserve at Highland Glen.  The Cluster Plan was approved on March 7, 2011 with an 
overall area of 130.5 acres and a total build out of 285 single-family lots.  The Cluster 
Plan is intended to allow some flexibility with lot sizes for the developer and in return 
they provide a larger amount of green space including pocket parks, trails, and 
amenitized detention areas. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North Houston ETJ Single Family Residential 
South PUD (Stonebridge), 

R-3 – Medium Density Res. 
Single Family Residential            

(Stonebridge Estates) 
East Houston ETJ  Single Family Residential 
West PUD (Lakes of Highland Glen) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Preliminary Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 2 
 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently zoned as Single-
Family Residential (R-1).  A cluster development plan was approved on 03/07/2011, 
which allows the developer to vary the size of lots as long as the overall density of the 
development does not go over 3.2 dwelling units an acre.  This proposed development 
is in accordance to the Cluster Development Plan for the Preserve at Highland Glen.  
The minimum lot sizes and density requirements for the Single-Family Residential-1   
(R-1) are as follows: 
 
            R-1                   Cluster Average 
 Lot Area:         8,800 sq. ft.       7,800 sq. ft.  
 Lot Depth:         80’            65’ 
 Lot Width:         90’            120’ 
 Density for Cluster Development:      3.2 units/acre     2.66 units/acre 
 
 
ANALYSIS OF THE CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The approved Cluster Development Plan satisfies the dwelling units per acre for 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential-1) zoning district.  The cluster plan was 
approved with an allowed density of approximately 2.66 dwelling units per acre. 
This meets the R-1 density requirement of 3.2 dwelling units per acre.   

 
Cluster Development Plan:  Density 
Calculation       
Type Acreage Lots Du/Acre Required 
The Preserve at Highland Glen 130 285     
Detention (Two Areas) 22.8       
Net Acreage 107.2 285 2.66 3.2 

 
For reference, gross residential density is calculated by including all 
retention/detention areas, platted streets, open space, recreational areas and 
parks, provided the applicant is able to indicate these areas will be amenities for 
the development.  Areas excluded in calculating density are easements and 
thoroughfare rights-of-way.  It should be noted that with the particular proposed 
Cluster Development, there is effectively more open area due to the large 
amount of area within floodway land.   

 
2. The approved Cluster Development Plan is consistent with the R-1 (Single-

Family Residential-1) zoning district, besides for the variations on lot size, width 
and depth. The smallest lot dimensions proposed in this development are 55-foot 
x 120-foot lots, 6,600 square feet.  As compared to an R-1 (Single-Family 
Residence-1) zoning district this is a 25% decrease from the 8,000 square feet 
requirement.  This development has a mixture of sized lots, with the smallest 
being the 6,600 square-foot lots.  
 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Preliminary Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 3 
 

3. This Cluster Development Plan will be adjoining a single-family residential 
development to the northeast which is located in the ETJ of the City of Houston.  
The abutting portion of this development (as well as Phase One) will adhere to 
the Unified Development Code, including setbacks and landscaping 
requirements and therefore should compliment the adjacent subdivision.   
 

4. The approved Cluster Development Plan will provide amenities and open space 
that may not be required in a typical single-family residential (R-1) development.  
These amenities include three neighborhood parks within this development which 
will include seating, playground, benches, shade structure and a picnic area.  
This development will also incorporate a trail system thorough the development, 
including landscaping and seating.  The drainage ditch will also be an amenity 
with landscaping and incorporating adjacent sections of trails.   

 
 
PLATTING STATUS: This request is for the Preliminary Plat for The Preserve at 
Highland Glen Section Two, which has 143 of the 285 single family residential lots.   
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Suburban Residential Development.  This land use 
designation is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan as this property is zoned R-1 
(Single Family Residential-1). 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is the 
second phase of The Preserve at Highland Glen which currently has frontage on the 
newly constructed Barry Rose expansion, a secondary thoroughfare with sufficient width 
for right-of-way of 100 feet.  The City constructed the extension (including the involved 
bridge) from Pearland Pkwy to the first entrance into the proposed development.  The 
remainder will be constructed by the developer of Ridge Creek, and is not needed for 
the proposed Preserve at Highland Glen.  Additionally, the property has access from 
existing Azure Brook Lane, located in the Clear Brook subdivision, outside the City limits 
of Pearland.  Interior roads within the subdivision have and will continue to be built to 
the local road standards of the City of Pearland.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel is served by public water and sewer 
lines.  These lines have been constructed along with the required infrastructure within 
Section One of this subdivision and will be extended to Section Two. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: The proposed Preliminary 
Plat should not have any significant adverse impacts on any surrounding structures or 
uses. This would also permit the applicant to develop the property in overall accordance 
with the Future Land Use Plan recommendations, and approved cluster plan. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Preliminary Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 4 
 

STATUS OF AMMENITIES:   
The following amenities will occur in phase I of the Preserve at Highland Glen. 
 

1. Linear Park with Trail and Seating (6’ wide concrete). (In progress) 
2. One Pocket Park (In progress) 

a. One with seating, shade structure, open lawn and picnic tables. 
3. Improved drainage ditch with landscaping. (In progress) 

 
*Amenities are for Section 1 are 90% complete.  Submittal of Final plat 
of section 2 will not be accepted until Phase 1 amenities are complete.  

 
 
The following amenities will occur in phase II of the Preserve at Highland Glen. 
           

1.  A one (1) acre pocket park is planned for phase two which will include seating 
and a meandering trail. 
 
*Amenity for Section 2 must be complete prior to Approval of Section 2 
Final Plat.  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this Preliminary Plat as 
proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 
Reasons for approval recommendation: 

 
1. Approval of the Preliminary Plat would be in conformance with the surrounding 

zoning and future land uses. 
 

2. The Preliminary Plat will not have any significant adverse impact on the 
surrounding properties and developments. 
 

3. The proposed development will be in conformance to the approved Cluster 
Development Plan and the guidelines of the Unified Development Code. 
 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
• Vicinity and Zoning Map 
• Future Land Use Plan 
• Aerial Photograph 
• Landscaping Exhibit 
• Open Space Exhibit 
• Final Plat of the Preserve at Highland Glen Section Two 

 



Preliminary Plat of The 
Preserve at Highland 

Glen Section Two 

Zoning and Vicinity Map 



Preliminary Plat of The 
Preserve at Highland 

Glen Section Two 

Future Land Use Plan 



Preliminary Plat of The 
Preserve at Highland 

Glen Section Two 

Aerial Map 



THE PRESERVE AT CLEAR CREEK

Beazer Homes Texas

Programming Diagram
Landscape Improvements

Pearland, Texas

CONCEPTUAL PLAN
MARCH 01, 2011
CCA PROJECT NO. 110-042

THIS DRAWING IS CONCEPTUAL IN NATURE AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED CONCERNING

THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION OR CHARACTER OF THIS PLAN ARE INTENDED

THIS PLAN IS NOT FOR PERMIT OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

DETENTION

DETENTION

DETENTION

BUILDER WALK/CONNECTOR - 4' WIDE
(CONCRETE)

COMMUNITY AMENITY TRAIL - 6' WIDE
(CONCRETE)

FUTURE CITY OF PEARLAND TRAIL
(CONCRETE)

CONNECTIVITY LEGEND

GREENSPACE PLANTINGS
GREENWAY/PARK ZONE

DITCH ZONE

DETENTION ZONE

- 190,000 SF OF NATIVE GRASS &
  WILDFLOWER SEED
- 25,000 SF OF AQUATIC PLANTING
- 273 CALIPER INCHES OF TREES

- AREAS TO BE GRADED AND SEEDED
  WITH NATIVE GRASSES
- WHERE POSSIBLE, EXISTING TREES
  TO BE PRESERVED

- 8,000  SF OF SHRUBS AND
  GROUNDCOVER
- 640 CALIPER INCHES OF TREES



PH I

PH II

PH II

44 00

33 88

2

2

44 2

33333 6666666

44 00

4 22

22

33 66

4 2

44 22

4 2

3

4 2

88

44

4 0

2222

3 8

±5.0 AC.
DETENTION

ENTRY
PARK

±0.5 AC.

DRAINAGE DITCH

DRAINAGE DITCH 

±3.3 ACRES

POCKET PARK
±2.4 AC.

±9.2 ACRES

M e l i l l o
M i d d l e  S c h o o l

C l e a r  B r o o k
M e a d o w s

±9.9 ACRES
CLEAR CREEK

±17.8 ACRES
DETENTION

±0.5 AC.
PARK

PRO
PO

SED H
U

G
H

ES R
OAD

HUGHES
 R

OAD

C
lear  C

reek 130’ W
ID

E D
RAIN

AGE D
IT

CH

F
l o

o
d

w
a

y

F
l o

o
d

w
a

y

10
0 

Ye
ar

 F
lo

od
pl

ai
n

100 Year 

Floodplain

L.S.

PARK
±0.9 AC.

LINEAR PARK
±1.3 ACRES

LINEAR PARK
±1.5 ACRES

±5.0 AC.
DETENTION

ENTRY
PARK

±0.5 AC.

DRAINAGE DITCH

DRAINAGE DITCH 

±3.3 ACRES

POCKET PARK
±2.4 AC.

±9.2 ACRES

M e l i l l o
M i d d l e  S c h o o l

C l e a r  B r o o k
M e a d o w s

±9.9 ACRES
CLEAR CREEK

±17.8 ACRES
DETENTION

±0.5 AC.
PARK

PRO
PO

SED H
U

G
H

ES R
OAD

HUGHES
 R

OAD

C
lear  C

reek 130’ W
ID

E D
RAIN

AGE D
IT

CH

F
l o

o
d

w
a

y

F
l o

o
d

w
a

y

10
0 

Ye
ar

 F
lo

od
pl

ai
n

100 Year 

Floodplain

L.S.

PARK
±0.9 AC.

LINEAR PARK
±1.3 ACRES

LINEAR PARK
±1.5 ACRES

an open space exhibit for

prepared for

T H E  P R E S E RV E
AT  C L E A R  C R E E K

± 1 3 0 . 6  AC R E S  O F  L A N D

B E A Z E R  H O M E S

©2009-2010 Kerry R. Gi lbert  & Associates, Inc.,  A
l l  R

ights R
eserved

MARCH 3, 2011
KGA #0425

SCALE

0 400200100

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

THIS DRAWING IS A PICTORIAL REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  FURTHER, 
SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS NOT FOR COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.  THIS DRAWING MAY OR 
MAY NOT INCORPORATE INFORMATION AND/OR DATA PROVIDED TO KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, INC. BY OTHER 
CONSULTANTS RELATIVE TO ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOOD PLAINS AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND SHOULD NOT BE 
RELIED UPON FOR ANY PURPOSE.  NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND 
CHARACTER OF THE FACILITES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED.  ADDITIONALLY, NO WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY 
OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

©2009-2010 KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, INC.,  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

●  EntryPark. . . . . . . .  . .±0.5 Acres

Drainage Ditch.. . . . . . . . . . . . . .±15.3 Acres

Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .±52.3 Acres

/Linear Park

Overall  Parks.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .± 4.3 Acres
●  Pocket Park. . . . . . . .±2.4 Acres

●  Park. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .±1.4 Acres

Detention/ Drainage.. . . . . . .±32.7 Acres





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 E

 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   
 

 
 
 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Harold Ellis, City Planner 
 
DATE:    August 16, 2012 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Appeal of Tree Disposition Plan 

 
 

� Old Business      �   New Business  �   Discussion Item �   Workshop 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary: This is a request to appeal the results of a tree disposition plan, required as 
part of a single-family home building permit request.  The owner of the above referenced 
property has recently plated the area and is in the process of obtaining the requisite 
approvals from the City to construct a single-family home on the lot.  As part of the City’s 
and other related entities review, it was noted that a number of protected trees on site 
(specifics provided later in this report) will be required to be removed as a result of 
building the new home, as illustrated on the attached Tree Disposition Plan.  The Unified 
Development Code required that protected trees are mitigated for (either replaced or 
payment made into a City tree fund).  The owner and applicant would like to appeal the 
mitigation required as part of this development. 

 

Staff Recommendation: Provide feedback and questions to Staff. 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Appeal of Tree Disposition Plan 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF AUGUST 20, 2012 
 

 
Appeal of Tree Disposition Plan  
 

A request by Kent Marsh, applicant, on behalf of Tom Alexander, Jr., owner, to 
Appeal a Tree Disposition Plan, pursuant to Section 4.2.3.5 (e), for property 
located at 2415 Broadway, further described as: 
 
Legal Description: Minor Plat of Alexander Estates, A subdivision of 14.576 acres 
in the W.D.C. Hall Survey, A-70, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location: 2415 Broadway, Pearland, TX 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request to appeal the results of a tree disposition plan, required 
as part of a single-family home building permit request.  The owner of the above 
referenced property has recently plated the area and is in the process of obtaining the 
requisite approvals from the City to construct a single-family home on the lot.  As part of 
the City’s and other related entities review, it was noted that a number of protected trees 
on site (specifics provided later in this report) will be required to be removed as a result 
of building the new home, as illustrated on the attached Tree Disposition Plan.  The 
Unified Development Code required that protected trees are mitigated for (either 
replaced or payment made into a City tree fund).  The owner and applicant would like to 
appeal the mitigation required as part of this development. 
 
Section 4.2.3.7 of the Unified Development Code specifies mitigation requirements for 
protected trees which are removed as a result of development.  Protected trees with a 
diameter between 12” and 24” are required to be mitigated for in an amount equal to 
200% of the diameter inches removed.  The tree mitigation survey performed by the 
owner has indicated that a total diameter of 123” of protected trees will be removed as a 
result of the development.  This equates to a total of 9 existing trees, all Elm and Oak, 
ranging in diameter between 12” and 24”.  With the City’s requirement that the number 
of inches removed be replaced at 200%, a total of 246” of tree diameter are required as 
mitigation.  At 2” per caliper, the City’s minimum size tree for mitigation, the owner 
would be required to plant 123 trees to replace the trees being removed.  The UDC 
does allow flexibility to plant larger than 2” caliper trees, which would result in fewer 
trees being required.   
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Appeal of Tree Disposition Plan 

Page 2 
 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North Single-Family Residential (R-1) Residential 
South General Business (GB) Vacant 
East Single-Family Residential (R-1) Residential 
West Single-Family Residential (R-3) 

and General Business (GB) Vacant 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  Section 4.2.3.5 (e) of Pearland’s Unified 
Development Code allows for an Appeal of the City’s tree mitigation requirements set 
forth in Division 3 of the Unified Development Code.  Specifically, the section referenced 
above states Any decision made by the City Manager or his/her designee with regard to 
the Tree Disposition Plan may be appealed by the applicant to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  All actions of the Commission are final.  
 
The Unified Development code allows for additional options in lieu of the mitigation 
replacement requirements listed in the Summary section above.  The additional options 
are listed below: 

1. Payment in the amount of $200 per diameter inch removed 
2. Transplant existing trees from an off-site location to the lot where trees are 

being removed, in the amount of diameter equal to what is being removed. 
 
The intent of the City’s tree mitigation ordinance is to ensure that the City’s overall tree 
canopy is not reduced.  If the appeal is granted, the overall tree canopy will be reduced 
by 123” if diameter in protected tree.  As discussed above, the tree mitigation ordinance 
required that be replaced at 200%.  If the appeal is granted with the conditional listed 
below, 123” of diameter would be replaced.  However, as the replacement trees will not 
be protected trees (as they will be planted with a diameter of less than 12”, which is 
considered diameter), there is the possibility the replacement trees may be removed as 
part of commercial development prior to their reaching protected status. 
 
STAFF CONSIDERATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the appeal for the 
following reasons and with the following condition: 
 

1. The site is a heavily wooded site and the areas where the trees are to be 
removed would not be visible from Broadway. 
 

2. The request, if approved with the recommended condition below, does not 
appear to have a significant negative impact of surrounding or nearby properties. 
 

3. The owner has been working with the City on the placement of the new home in 
an effort to reduce the number of protected trees that need to be removed. 



 
 

P&Z 08/20/2012 
Appeal of Tree Disposition Plan 

Page 3 
 

 
If the Commission were inclined to approve the appeal, the Condition below may help to 
lessen any potential adverse impacts.   
 
Recommended Condition of approval: 
 

1. The applicant mitigate the protected tree removal in the amount of 50% of the 
requirement set forth in Section 4.2.3.7 of the Unified Development Code, by 
placing that amount (123 caliper inches) of trees along the front of their property 
(Broadway), within the front setback requirement; along the property immediately 
to the west, under the same ownership, and referred to as T&R Realty 
Investment, LLC, Clerk’s File No. 2011028636 B.C.C.O, within the front setback 
requirement; and along the property immediately to the east, under the same 
ownership, and referred to as T&R Realty Investment, LLC, Clerk’s File No. 
2011028636, within the front setback. 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

• Vicinity and Zoning Map 
• Aerial Map 
• Letter of Intent 
• Exhibit B from Tree Disposition Plan 
• Recorded Subdivision Plat 

 



Vicinity and Zoning  Map
2415 Broadway

GB

R-3

R-1

R-2PUD

GC

NS

R-4

E BROADWAY ST

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

REGAL O
AKS DR

GREEN TEE DR

JA
MISON RD

PATR
ICIA LN

LIB
ERTY DR

SM
ITH

 LN

PROVINCE VILLAGE DR

W CIRCLE DR

PR
IC

E C
IR

¯0 210 420105 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
2415 Broadway

E BROADWAY ST

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

REGAL O
AKS DR

GREEN TEE DR

JA
MISON RD

PATR
ICIA LN

LIB
ERTY DR

SM
ITH

 LN

PROVINCE VILLAGE DR

W CIRCLE DR

PR
IC

E C
IR

¯0 210 420105 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.











P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 F

 
 
 

 

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text
DISCUSSION ITEMS:1.	Commissioners Activity Report2.	P&Z Strategic Plan3.	Upcoming Guest Speakers4.	No P&Z Regular Meeting, September 3, 2012 – due to city Holiday5.	Next JPH, September 17, 2012 

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text

jbrown
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1. P&Z Agenda Coversheet
	2. August 20 2012 PZ Agenda packet
	A. Preserve at Highland Glen 2
	2. P & Z First Preliminary Plat Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2
	3. Zoning Map
	4. Future land use map
	5. Aerial Map
	6. Landscaping Exhibit
	7. Open Space Exhibit_03-02-03
	8. Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2

	B. Agenda Request Memo
	B. Tree Disposition
	1. Appeal of Tree Disposition Plan 08-20-12
	2. Vicinity and Zoning Map
	3. Aerial Map
	4. Letter of Intent
	5. Exhibit B - Tree Mitigation Plan
	6. Recorded Plat (Alexander_Estates)


	7. AGENDA ITEM C
	8.ADJOURN MEETING
	08 06 2012 P&Z Minutes.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER 
	P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m. with the following present:

	2012-08-20 Joint Public Hearing.pdf
	Joint Public Hearing Zone Change 2012-05Z 
	Staff Report 
	Vicinity and Zoning Map
	Abutter Map 
	Abutters List 
	Future Land Use Map 
	Aerial Map
	Applicant Packet 

	Joint Public Hearing Zone Change 2012-06Z
	Staff Report 
	Vicinity and Zoning Map
	Abutter Map
	Abutters Lists
	Future Land Use Map
	Aerial Map
	Applicant  Packet

	Joint Public Hearing Zone Change 2012-07Z
	Staff Report
	Vicintiy and Zoning Map
	Abutter Map
	Abutters List
	Future Land Use Map
	Aerial Map
	Applicant Pack


	August 20, 2012 P&Z Agenda.pdf
	A. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2012-05Z
	B. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2012-06Z
	C. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2012-07Z




